
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Pete Martens, Committee 
Manager Planning & Regulatory on 01432 260248 or e-mail 
pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Regulatory Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 7 December 2010 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Pete Martens, Committee Manager Planning & Regulatory 
Tel: 01432 260248 
Email: pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Regulatory 
Committee 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor JW Hope MBE 
Vice-Chairman Councillor PGH Cutter 
  

Councillor CM Bartrum  
Councillor SPA Daniels  
Councillor JHR Goodwin  
Councillor RC Hunt  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor PJ McCaull  
Councillor GA Powell  
Councillor A Seldon  
Councillor JD Woodward  
  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  7 DECEMBER 2010 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 2  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th November, 

2010. 
 

 

   
5. HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH 

DIVERSION ORDER, FOOTPATH FWD10 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF 
FOWNHOPE   

3 - 8  

   
 To consider proposals to make concurrent public path creation and 

extinguishment orders to alter part of footpath FWD10, Fownhope. 
 
Ward Affected: Backbury 
 

 

   
6. HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH 

DIVERSION & EXTINGUISHMENT, FOOTPATHS BM12 AND BM13 (PART) 
IN THE PARISH OF BODENHAM   

9 - 18  

   
 To consider a proposal to divert part of footpath BM12 and extinguish part of 

footpath BM13, Bodenham. 
 
Ward Affected: Hampton Court 
 

 

   
7. HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH 

DIVERSION ORDER, FOOTPATH LV11 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF 
LLANVEYNOE   

19 - 24  

   
 To consider an application to make a public path diversion order to divert 

part of footpath LV11 in the parish of Llanveynoe. 
 
Wards Affected: Castle 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   



 

 

8. HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH 
DIVERSION ORDER, FOOTPATH CH20, CLEHONGER (PART) AND 
FOOTPATH EB25 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF EATON BISHOP   

25 - 30  

   
 To consider an application to divert part of footpath CH20, Clehonger 

and part of footpath EB25, Eaton Bishop. 
 
Ward affected: Stoney Street 
 

 

   
9. HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE CAPPING     
   
 To receive a verbal update about progress on introducing a limit on the 

number of hackney carriages operating within the County. 
 

 

   
10. PROCEDURAL ARRANGEMENTS   31 - 32  
   
 To note the procedural arrangements for the meeting. 

 
 

   
11. APPLICATION TO RE-INSTATE AN EXPIRED HACKNEY CARRIAGE 

VEHICLE LICENCE OUTSIDE STANDARD CONDITION 9.5 BY MR 
SHAHID ALI   

33 - 60  

   
 To decide whether to licence a vehicle outside the standards vehicle licence 

conditions. 
 

 

   
12.      
   
 In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the following item will not be, or is likely 

not to be, open to the public and press at the time it is considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: that under section 100(A)(4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Schedule 
12(A) of the Act, as indicated below and it 
is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the 
information. 

 
1 Information relating to any individual. 
 
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 

 

   
13. DUAL (HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE) DRIVER'S LICENCE - TO 

DETERMINE WHETHER A LICENCE HOLDER CONTINUES TO BE A FIT 
AND PROPER PERSON TO HOLD A DUAL DRIVER'S LICENCE - LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976   

61 - 66  

   
 To determine whether a licence holder is a fit and proper person to hold a 

dual driver’s licence. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   



 

 

14. DUAL (HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE) DRIVER'S LICENCE - TO 
DETERMINE WHETHER A LICENCE HOLDER CONTINUES TO BE A FIT 
AND PROPER PERSON TO HOLD A DUAL DRIVER'S LICENCE. LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976   

67 - 80  

   
 To determine whether a licence holder is a fit and proper person to hold a 

dual driver’s licence. 
 

 

   
15. DUAL (HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE) DRIVER'S LICENCE - TO 

DETERMINE WHETHER A LICENCE HOLDER CONTINUES TO BE A FIT 
AND PROPER PERSON TO HOLD A DUAL DRIVER'S LICENCE. LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976   

81 - 88  

   
 To determine whether a licence holder is a fit and proper person to hold a 

dual driver’s licence. 
 

 

   
16. DATES OF FORTHCOMING MEETINGS     
   
 4th January, 2011 – scheduled meeting 

 
11th January, 2011 – additional meeting to consider land at Argyll Rise, 
Belmont.  

 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located at the 
southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to 
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



AGENDA ITEM 4

1



2



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Will Steel on (01432) 845980 
  

$cfxkm2dh.doc 19th Oct 2010 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7 DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 26 AND SECTION 
118. PROPOSED CONCURRENT PUBLIC PATH 
CREATION AND EXTINGUISHMENT ORDERS 
FOOTPATH FWD10 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF 
FOWNHOPE 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Backbury 

Purpose 

To consider proposals under the Highways Act 1980, section 26 and section 118, to make concurrent 
public path creation and extinguishment orders to alter part of footpath FWD10 in the parish of 
Fownhope. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

That a public path order is made to create a section of path under Section 26 of the Highways 
Act 1980, and a further order is made to extinguish the ends of FWD10 where it has fallen into 
the river under Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980, as illustrated on drawing number: 
D249/149-D10(i). 

Key Points Summary 

• Public footpath FWD10 has been closed for some years due to the collapse of the bank towards 
the river making the footpath impassable.   

• It is estimated that to reinstate the existing line of the path would require somewhere in the 
region of £120,000 of engineering works to stabilise the riverbank (this estimate may not include 
protection to prevent further collapse). 

• Herefordshire Council wishes to alter the path in the interests of the public, away from the area 
of erosion, as the affected section forms part of a longer riverside walk popular with local people 
and visitors. 

AGENDA ITEM 5

3



• The eroded section of path is legally considered to have been extinguished and thus the 
alteration will have to be carried out by concurrent creation and extinguishment orders rather 
than a diversion order. 

• The landowner is not opposed to the proposal in principle but may object to the orders on the 
grounds that his diversion applications (for footpaths FWD4 and FWD7) are not being dealt with 
at the same time. 

• The landowner may be entitled to compensation in respect to the creation/extinguishment 
orders if made and confirmed. 

Alternative Options 

1 Under Section 26 and Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make 
creation and extinguishment orders. It does not have a duty to do so. The Council could reject 
the proposal on the grounds that it does not contribute sufficiently to the wider ambitions and 
priorities of the Council.  However, if the proposal were to be rejected, this popular path would 
remain inaccessible to the public.     

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The public path orders should be made because it is felt that they meet the criteria set out in s 
26 and s118 of the Highways Act and are felt to be in the wider public interest.   

Introduction and Background 

3 Under s 26 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has the power to make an order to create a 
path where it is expedient to do so.  Under s118 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has 
the power to make orders to extinguish a path where it is felt that it is not necessary for public 
use.  The current line of the path FWD10 has suffered from a landslip which has effectively 
extinguished parts of it and rendered the remaining sections in Lea Brink woods impassable to 
members of the public.  The creation/extinguishment is felt to be in the interests of the public 
because this is a popular route of river-side path from the village of Fownhope, which is 
currently impassable. These orders would open it up to public use. Before orders are made to 
extinguish and create footpaths under the Highways Act 1980, it is necessary to gain a 
decision from the Regulatory Committee, as they hold the delegated authority to make this 
decision. 

Key Considerations 

4 Herefordshire Council put forward the proposal in the interests of the public. 

5 Pre-order consultation has been carried out by the Public Rights of Way department.  The 
Open Spaces Society are ‘reluctantly minded to accept that this is a pragmatic, cost effective 
proposal to obviate expensive works to re-instate the eroded path.’  The Ramblers’ 
Association welcome the changes to the footpath, however, are concerned that the slope is 
continuing to erode and will erode this proposed route, they therefore suggest that it should be 
moved further into the field.  When asked, an engineer suggested that this erosion should not 
be an issue (at least, in the medium term) due to the topography of the land.  The RA also 
opined that the path be moved to follow through the existing gate near to point ‘C’ on the order 
plan as the incline is shallower at this point.  However, it is felt that, to keep the possible 
compensation costs to a minimum, the proposal should remain as indicated on the existing 
plan.   

4



6 Whilst the landowner has acknowledged the need for a resolution to FWD10, it is possible that 
he may object to the orders if made. He has applied for diversions to paths FWD7 and FWD4 
which he wanted to see made at the same time as these proposals.  Although the FWD10 
proposals have been prioritised as they are considered to be in the public interest, informal 
consultation has taken place regarding the FWD4 & FWD7 proposals. Significant objections 
were received to these and further consideration is required to see if an acceptable solution 
can be developed. The proposals for footpaths FWD4 and FWD7, as they stand, are solely in 
the interests of the landowner, not of the public and will be dealt with as a separate matter in 
due course. However, due to the length of time it has already taken to get to the current 
position with regards to FWD10, it is recommended that it is dealt with now and independently 
of the other proposals. 

7 The Parish Council are keen to progress this matter and are in support of the amendment of 
the path.  However, they would like these amendments to be linked with the FWD4 and FWD7 
proposals.  For the reasons given above this is not considered appropriate. The Amey PROW 
Manager attended a special Parish Council meeting to discuss these proposals on 
12/11/2010. Whilst he recognised the local support for all the proposals he explained the 
difficulties in considering them at the same time as they currently stand and the need to 
progress FWD10 as it is clearly in the public interest.   

8 The Public Rights of Way budget will bear the costs (administration costs, advertising fees and 
possible compensation costs) of this diversion.   

9 The local member, Cllr. J Pemberton does not object to the proposals.    

10 The proposed creation meets the specified criteria as set out in section 26 of the Highways Act 
1980 in that: there is a need for this footpath and we are satisfied that it is expedient that the 
path should be created with regard to the additional convenience to the public and to the effect 
which the creation of the path would have on the rights of the persons interested in the land. 

11 Under section 28 of the Highways Act, the landowner is entitled to claim compensation if he 
feels that the value of his interest in the land has depreciated and/or that he has suffered 
damage by being disturbed in his enjoyment of land, in consequence of the coming into 
operation of the order.  

 
12 The level of likely compensation has been assessed by the District Valuer (as an independent 

assessor) and is likely to be in the region of £600 plus £660 surveyors fees (plus legal costs 
and VAT). 

 
13 If an order is made and confirmed to create a path as proposed, an extinguishment order is 

proposed, to extinguish the ends of the path through the wood that lead to the area of 
collapse.  The extinguishment order meets the specified criteria as set out in section 118 of 
the Highways Act 1980 as the path would not be needed for public use if the creation order 
were to be confirmed. 

Community Impact 

14       The route of this path is an important recreational route out of Fownhope village.  It is detailed 
in a series of published walks around Fownhope and is therefore used by tourists too.  The 
path has been closed for many years and it will be beneficial for the village community to open 
the path again.  The Parish Council have expressed a desire to conclude the matter with 
considerable public support. 

Financial Implications 

15 The landowner will be entitled to compensation if this proposed order is made and confirmed.   

5



The cost of this compensation will come from the Public Right of Way budget which is held by 
the Amey Herefordshire contract (see point 10 above).  

The cost of re-instating the existing path has been considered and an engineering report 
produced.  It is anticipated that to reinstate the existing line of the path would cost in excess of 
£120,000 which is not financially viable within the present rights of way budget. 

Legal Implications 

16 Under Section 118 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make 
extinguishment orders. It does not have a duty to do so.  Under Section 26 of the Highways 
Act 1980, the Council has the power to make creation orders, it does not have a duty to do so. 

Risk Management 

17 Set out the risks, their consequences and any mitigating actions.   

a. If the orders are made as proposed, the landowner may be entitled to compensation, 
this has been estimated to be in the region of £1260 (plus legal costs, plus VAT).  Any 
compensation which would become payable as a consequence of the making of these 
orders would come from the rights of way budget, held by Amey.    

b. If the proposed orders are made, there is a risk that they will sustain objections, this 
would necessitate their referral to the Secretary of State for a decision, which could 
place an increased demand on officer time.   

c. If the report is declined, the path will remain inaccessible to the public and they may be 
discouraged from visiting the area and use of the rights of way network.   

Consultees 

18 The following organisations/individuals were consulted for their opinion to the proposals. 

• Prescribed organisations as per Defra Rights Of Way Circular 1/09.  

• Local Member – Cllr. J Pemberton. 

• Fownhope Parish Council. 

• Statutory Undertakers. 

Appendices 

19 Order Plan, drawing number D249/149-D10(i) 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

6



7



8



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Will Steel, Amey Public Rights of Way Manager on (01432) 845900 
  

 

 MEETING:  REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

 DATE:  7 DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF  
REPORT: 

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 118 & 119. 
PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 
FOOTPATH BM12 (PART) AND PUBLIC PATH 
EXTINGUISHMENT ORDER FOOTPATH BM13 
(PART) IN THE PARISH OF BODENHAM 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Hampton Court 

Purpose 

To consider a proposal to make a public path diversion order to divert part of footpath BM12 and a 
public path extinguishment order to divert part of footpath BM13 in the parish of Bodenham under the 
Highways Act 1980, sections 118 and 119. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

That a public path diversion order relating to Public Footpath BM12 (C-D to C-E) is made under 
Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 as illustrated on attached drawing number: DWG No: 
D174/42-12&13 but that the proposal for a public path extinguishment order relating to Public 
Footpath BM13 (B-A & F-G) is not pursued and instead an alternative resolution of the problem 
is sought, ,which may include a limited diversion of Public Footpath BM13, as referred to in 
the  alternative options section of this report 

 

 Key Points Summary 

• Public Footpath BM13 has been obstructed for several years following the construction of a 
brick-built garage / workshop just to the west of point A as shown of the attached plan. The 
section of path F-G has also been unavailable for long periods due to the locking of a gate and 
other obstructions. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

9



• The complex background to this issue was reported to this Committee in October 2009 and 
officers were instructed to commence the process for the consideration of a public path order to 
extinguish the sections of Public Footpath BM13 marked A-B and F-G on the attached plan. 

• The only reasonable alternative route for people who would otherwise use the affected section 
of BM13, travelling to or from the west of the village, is to use Public Footpath BM12. This path 
is also obstructed, in this case following the development of Orchard Close in the 1970s. As part 
of the consideration of the extinguishment of BM13, it has therefore also been necessary to 
develop a concurrent proposal to divert BM12 to provide an appropriate alternative route.    

• The proposals were sent to pre-order consultation. The proposed diversion of BM12 has 
received general support although the Ramblers and the Open Spaces Society (OSS) have 
expressed a preference for the new path to travel diagonally across the field rather than 
following the perimeter. 

• Whilst the proposed extinguishment of BM13 received support from several consultees, the 
Ramblers, the Malvern Hills District Footpath Society (MHDFS) and the OSS objected to it on 
the grounds that the route is needed for public use.  

 Alternative Options 

1 Public Footpaths BM12 and 13 are obstructed and the Council has a statutory duty to resolve 
the problem. If the proposals under consideration in this report are not proceeded with or are 
unsuccessful then alternatives include  

i) the removal of the obstructions which currently consists of a brick work shop, 
garden wall, fence and locked gate on BM13 and 7-8 fences on BM12. This would 
cause significant inconvenience to local residents and is likely to be unpopular with 
the local member and parish council and might receive adverse publicity. 

ii) a limited diversion of BM13 onto adjacent land in the ownership of the Siward 
James Trust. This is likely to result in objections from the Siward James Trustees 
and a claim for compensation. However the compensation claim will be covered by 
the insurers for the search company.  

 Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The proposed public path diversion order affecting BM12 should be made because it is felt 
that it meets the criteria set out in s119 of the Highways Act (see Report paras 21-24) and the 
criteria of Herefordshire Council’s Public Path Order Policy (see Report para 17-24) . The 
making of this diversion order will resolve a long term obstruction of the rights of way network 
and ensure that the footpath is open and useable to the public. 

3 The proposed public path extinguishment order affecting BM13 should not be approved 
because it is felt that it does not meet the criteria set out in s118 of the Highways Act (see 
Report paras 13-20) and the requirements of Herefordshire Council’s Public Path Order Policy 
(see report paras 17-20). Were the order to be made it is likely to receive objections which 
officers believe would probably be upheld in any subsequent determination by the Secretary of 
State. 

 Introduction and Background 

4 Public Footpath BM13 has been obstructed for many years following the construction of a 
brick-built garage / workshop and a garden boundary to the west of point A as shown on the 

10



attached plan. The owners of the property did not realise the path was blocked until 2003 when, 
following the receipt of a complaint, officers started looking into the matter and brought it to their 
attention. The owners of the property disputed the fact that the path ran through their property and 
referred to a property search that had been carried in 2001 when they purchased the house. The 
search was subsequently found to be inaccurate and the insurers of the search company have, in 
principle, agreed to fund the resolution of the problem. 

5 When the Regulatory Committee considered this issue in October 2009 it instructed officers to 
commence the process for the consideration of a public path order to extinguish the sections 
of Public Footpath BM13 marked A-B and F-G on the attached plan. The only reasonable 
alternative route for people who would otherwise use BM13 is to use Public Footpath BM12. 
This path is also obstructed, in this case by the development of Orchard Close. As part of the 
consideration of the extinguishment of BM13, it has therefore also been necessary to develop 
a concurrent proposal to divert BM12 to provide an appropriate alternative route 

6 Informal pre-order consultations have been carried out to gauge attitudes to the package of 
proposals. Consultees included relevant statutory undertakers, Bodenham Parish Council and 
local representatives of user groups prescribed in Defra's Rights of Way Circular 1/09. Whilst 
responses have been generally supportive, adverse comments and objections have been 
received from the Ramblers and the OSS. The MHDFS also have an interest in the issue and 
have indicated their likely objections to the proposed extinguishment of BM13. More detail on 
all these objections is given below. 

7 The Ramblers, whilst supportive in principle of the diversion of BM12 to resolve the Orchard 
Close obstruction, wish to see a modification to the proposal so that the new path runs north-
westerly from point E on the plan diagonally across the field rather than around the perimeter 
of the field via point C. 

8 The Amey PROW Manager has met with the landowner of the field over which the relevant 
existing and proposed parts of BM12 would run. Whilst he is not opposed in principle to the 
proposals insofar as they affect him, his preference would be for the diverted route to run 
along C-E subject to reaching agreement as to suitable compensation. The diagonal route 
preferred by the Ramblers would require greater compensation and would create a cross-field 
route with potential difficulties for the farmer should he decide to cultivate it in the future. 

9 More significantly, the Ramblers are opposed to the extinguishment of the part of BM13. In 
their response to the consultation they state: 

“In view of the long standing problems on rights of way in Bodenham, that the paths are 
needed for public use and that there are sensible and suitable alternatives, the extinguishment 
of paths is not the solution, therefore we object to this order.  

Public Right of Way BM13 through points G, F & A to B is the continuation of BM13 from OS 
Grid Reference SO548506, thus providing a continuous route, without the need to walk up the 
road, through to Bodenham bridge and onto Bodenham school and church. It can be seen that 
this could provide a safe route to school for pupils living on the housing estate. The route 
through F & G also provides pedestrian access from the housing estate to the south of the 
village and this portion of the path can be opened simply be the removal of obstructions, being 
a locked pedestrian gate and clearing of overgrowth from hedging. 

Public Right of Way BM13 is an important part of the network of paths within the parish of 
Bodenham.” 

10 The OSS has replied in similar terms to the Ramblers, being supportive of the diversion of 
BM12 but recommending that the direct route across the field is established as the legal line of 
the path. With regards to BM13 the OSS correspondent notes that : 

11



 “We should certainly strongly object if an Order were to be made to Extinguish any of the path. 
It forms a useful through-route continuing on both East and West, any possible alternative 
routes are along roads, some without footways. 

There can be no possible justification for closing section A-G as this part of the path is not 
affected by the building which obstructs the separate section to the West. 
  
In my view this Extinguishment proposal is legally flawed, has no prospect of success and 
would be a complete waste of money. 
The obvious solution would be to make a Creation Order to by pass the obstructing building 
along an existing private path to the North, meeting the road adjacent to point A” 
 

11 The MHDFS have commented: 

“The Malvern Hills District Footpath Society is likely to object to an extinguishment order. Our 
justification for objection is likely to be: 
  
a.    We believe that the proposed alternative route path length is approx 900 yards between 
Point D and the junction of BM12 & BM13 at Point C on the plan presented to the Regulatory 
Committee. We estimate that the original path length of BM13 between Point D and the 
junction of BM12 & BM13 at Point C was approx 500 yards. We believe that nearly doubling 
the path length to be walked when combined with a more complicated navigation need to 
change directions several times makes the proposed alternative route 'substantially less 
convenient to the public'  than the original route.  Moreover the proposed alternative route also 
removes the potential of a short circular walk using BM12 & BM13 for the local community, eg 
dog walkers, walking for health initiative walks, etc.  
  
b.    We believe that there is a user demand for this path to be open. This demand is indicated 
by both the County's and our own records of complaints that the path has been obstructed for 
a number of years. Although the total number of complaints will be quite small, we suggest 
that this is because the path has not been signed so some local people will not have known 
that it should be there and because a number of potential users will not have known how to 
complain or will have just not bothered to complain (possibly knowing that complaints are 
rarely dealt with expeditiously). Moreover for a rural village path, unless someone organises a 
local campaign, even a small number of complaints and complainants would be unusual and 
thus indicate a robust user demand. In spite of the comment made by the Ward Member to the 
Regulatory Committee in October 2009 that the interest in this path seemed to be limited to 
one local resident, I personally am aware that  our own Society have wished to walk this path 
about seven times during the past five years and we live some 15 miles away. Finally, we note 
that your proposed diversion of footpath BM12 is already 'well trod' on the ground which 
indicates that there are regular walkers in this locality who would probably also be using 
footpath BM13 if it were open.  
  
c.    Three alternative options seem to have been offered to the Regulatory Committee and all 
are described as 'no cost to the Council'. Only one, and now apparently the preferred of  these 
options, involves the closure of the path. It seems to us that by selecting this option when 
other options are available that would keep the path open, the Herefordshre Council has 
not been diligent in its statutory duties under Section 130 of the Highways Act 1980 'to protect 
.. the rights of the public to the use ... of highways ...' and 'to prevent as far as possible the 
stopping up .... of those highways'.  
  
I would also comment that the report made to the Regulatory Committtee in October 2009 
seems to be in error in claiming that extinguishment would remove path BM13 from two other 
gardens (I believe only one other garden is involved) and seems to offer no justification for the 
proposal to remove the path from the garden between Brockington Road and the C1125…”.  

12



 

 Key Considerations 

12 Whilst these proposals have been put forward as a package, two separate public path orders 
would be needed to give effect to them and each order must be assessed on its own merits 
independently of each other and against the relevant statutory and policy requirements.  

 Extinguishment of BM13 

13 A public path extinguishment order is made under s118 Highways Act 1980. An order may be 
made where the Council is satisfied that the path is not needed for public use. However, such 
an order may only be confirmed where it is expedient to do so having regard to the extent to 
which the path would be likely to be used by the public apart from the order and the effect on 
the land served by the path. The Council must also have regard to any material provision of its 
Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2007-2011. 

14 The test of whether a path is needed for use is often assessed by the extent, if any, of actual 
use. In this case, where the path has been obstructed for a number of years and use has been 
impossible, such an assessment cannot be made. However since 2002 the PROW 
Management System has recorded complaints regarding obstructions on the affected section 
of BM13 on nine separate occasions thus indicating a demand for its use.  Nonetheless, the 
Regulatory Committee made it clear, at  its October 2009 meeting, that given the alternative 
routes available - BM12 in place of section A-B and the metalled path across the public open 
space some 55m north of section F-G - it is satisfied that AB and FG are not needed for public 
use. 

15 The second element of the test is whether it would be expedient to confirm the order having 
regard to the extent that the path would be likely to be used apart from the order. S118(6) 
specifically requires that any temporary circumstances that might limit use of the path, such as 
the current obstructions of BM13, should be disregarded. It seems highly likely that any 
walkers using BM13 as part of a longer walk east to west or vice versa would choose to use 
the existing legal line if available as opposed to the suggested alternative routes as they are 
more direct and reflect the original, historical line of the path. This is reinforced by the demand 
for the reopening of BM13 referred to above. In light of this it would appear that it will be 
difficult to meet this element of the statutory tests. 

16 The third element of the test is the effect of the proposal on land served by the path. It is 
considered that there are no adverse effects in this respect. 

17 Finally the Council must have regard to any material provisions of the ROWIP. Appendix A of 
the ROWIP contains the Council’s Public Path Order Policy. This sets out particular criteria 
that the Council requires to be considered insofar as they affect the public’s enjoyment of the 
path. Whilst the document refers to the need to take these criteria into account when taking 
decisions on diversions, it is clear that, in this context, the considerations should apply to the 
alternative route that will be available if the extinguishment of BM13 proceeds. Three criteria 
set out in the ROWIP of particular relevance are given below: 

18 “Directness 
The proposed new route should not unreasonably lengthen the path other than where it is in 
the interests of an overall improvement to the local network. The proposed new route should 
avoid introducing unnecessary “dog legs” into the path, or be overly circuitous. It should retain 
or improve a connection with another public right of way to reduce the distance travelled along 
metalled carriageways.” 

13



The approximate length of BM13 proposed to be extinguished, B-A-G-F, is 480m. The 
alternative route, following BM12 as diverted and then Orchard Close and the C1125, B-C-E –
G, is about 820m. This is clearly a significant lengthening of the distance travelled. Whether it 
could be considered reasonable depends upon the context of the whole walk being 
undertaken it but it would not be possible to justify it as being in the interests of an overall 
improvement to the local network. It also reduces the connectivity of the network and requires 
walkers to walk some 315m along the road much of which is without a footway. It would 
appear difficult therefore to argue that the proposal satisfies this requirement.  

19 “Status 
There will be no downgrading of the existing rights other than where it is in the interests of an 
overall improvement to the local network.” 

The proposed extinguishment could be construed as a downgrading of rights. Again, it would 
not be possible to justify it as being in the interests of an overall improvement to the local 
network and thus it would appear difficult therefore to argue that the proposal satisfies this 
requirement. 

20 “Alternatives 
The applicant will be required to demonstrate that they have considered alternatives to the 
altering of a right of way, i.e. amending proposals, changing boundary locations etc.” 
 

 The principle underlying this factor is that the Council has an overarching duty to protect the 
rights of the public and thus that the presumption should be against making alterations to the 
network. Where changes are considered necessary, then the impact on the public should be 
minimised; in this case this would suggest that a diversion of section A-B should be preferred 
to extinguishment. Whilst the Siward James Trust may be opposed to a diversion of the path 
onto their land due to concerns about the possible impact on vulnerable residents who live 
there, the route would not run across individual private gardens and through appropriate 
fencing and screening the effect on residents could be limited. 

With regards to section F-G, it is possible to consider this section independently from section 
A-B. There is no obvious other alignment onto which it could be diverted and thus the 
alternative is to reopen the legal line. Whilst this might be opposed by the owner of the 
property, the route of the path is already segregated from much of the garden by hedging and 
thus with some minor works the reopening should also have limited effect on the owner.  

Diversion of BM12 

21 A public path diversion order is made under s119 Highways Act 1980. An order may be made 
in the interests of the landowner, lessee or occupier of land crossed by a path or of the public. 
To confirm the order, the Council must also be satisfied that the path will not be substantially 
less convenient to the public and broadly must consider the effect of the diversion on public 
enjoyment of the path as a whole  and the effect it would have on land served by the path. The 
Council must also have regard to any material provision of its Rights of Way Improvement 
Plan (ROWIP) 2007-2011. 

22 The proposed diversion can be considered to be in the interests of the owners of the land 
crossed by the affected section of BM12 as to reopen the legal line of the path would required 
the removal of property boundaries and garden buildings from nine properties and the 
resulting reduction in their privacy and security. 

23 The alternative route proposed, C-E-D, is approximately 185m in length compared to the 
original, C-D, 115m and the surfacing is comparable or better so the proposed new route is 
considered to be not substantially less convenient. There are not considered to be any 

14



adverse effects on the land served by the path taking into account the potential payment of 
compensation to the landowner. A valuer from Herefordshire Council Property Services has 
estimated that the level of compensation appropriate to this proposal is approximately £250 
plus surveyors / legal fees. With regards to the effect on public enjoyment, there would also 
appear to be little adverse impact.  

24 The relevant provisions of the ROWIP are the Public Path Order Policy criteria relating to 
Directness (see previous para 18) and Alternatives (see previous para 20) discussed above in 
relation to BM13. Whilst there is an increase in length arising from the proposal, it is not 
considered to be unreasonable nor is the connectivity of the network significantly affected. 
Whilst some of the alternative route (E-D) runs along the cul de sac Orchard Close 
carriageway, there is a footway in place for all of this length. With regards to alternative 
options, apart from reopening the legal line there is no other reasonable route that it can be 
diverted to. 

  

 Community Impact 

25 The Parish Council has been consulted as part of the pre-order consultation process and 
supports the proposals to extinguish part of BM13 and divert part of BM12. 

 Financial Implications 

26 The insurers of the search company, who carried out the defective search on behalf of the owners 
of 44 Brockington Road, Bodenham have, in principle, agreed to fund the full costs of implementing 
these proposals. A formal agreement to this effect would be concluded before any order 
making is commenced. Should only the proposals affecting BM12 and or section F-G of BM13 
be agreed, then the costs of the process, and any compensation payable, would have to be 
met from the existing Public Rights of Way budget. 

 Legal Implications 

27 Under sections 118 and 119 Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make 
extinguishment and diversion orders. It does not have a duty to do so. It is likely  that, in 
regards to the proposed extinguishment of BM13 under s.118 of the Highways act 1980, the 
appropriate legal tests have not been met. It is probable therefore that objections to an 
extinguishment order for BM13  will be received, which will, most likely, lead on to a public 
Inquiry which is a costly process, as regards officer time, and with the probability that the 
inspector will recommend that the order is not confirmed  

 Under section 130 Highways Act 1980 the Council has an overriding duty to protect the rights 
of the public to the use and enjoyment of public rights of way and to prevent, as far as 
possible, the obstruction or stopping up of public rights of way. In this regard,  the Council 
could pursue legal action in respect of the present obstructions but it is noted that this would 
be unpopular with residents and the local member, with the possibility of adverse publicity, and 
therefore an alternative remedy, as suggested in  the report ,would be desirable 

 Risk Management 

28 There is a risk that any order made may receive objections which would then increase 
demands on officer time (for instance in the determination of the order at a Public Inquiry). 
Given the responses to the proposals at pre-order consultation, a Public Inquiry would appear 
to be a likely outcome if an order to extinguish BM13 is made and, in view of the statutory 

15



tests, it is probable that the order would not be confirmed. 

29 The alternative option for BM13 of seeking a diversion order to take the path across adjacent 
land in the ownership of the Siward James Trust may also result in objections and a Public 
Inquiry. However, it is considered that such an order would be more likely to be confirmed.  

 Consultees 

• Prescribed organisations as per Defra Rights Of Way Circular 1/09.  

• Malvern Hills District Footpath Society 

• Local Member – Cllr. Grumbley  

• Bodenham Parish Council. 

• Statutory Undertakers. 

 Appendices 

• Order Plan, drawing number: DWG No: D174/42-12&13 

 Background Papers 

• None identified. 

16



17



18



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Will Steel, Rights of Way Manager on (01432) 845980 
  

$ofteudrc.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7 DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119. PROPOSED 
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER FOOTPATH LV11 
(PART) IN THE PARISH OF LLANVEYNOE 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  Highways and Transportation 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Castle 

Purpose 

To consider an application under the Highways Act 1980, section 119, to make a public path diversion 
order to divert part of footpath LV11 in the parish of Llanveynoe. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

That a public path diversion order is made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as 
illustrated in drawing number: D382/244-11. 

Key Points Summary 

• The landowner applied for the diversion of Footpath LV11 in 2007 

• The footpath runs between the farmhouse and a barn which has now been converted to 
include part of the living accommodation 

• The proposal is to divert part of the footpath a short distance to run across adjacent 
pastureland in the applicant’s ownership  for reasons of privacy. 

• Informal consultations have been carried out and there are no outstanding objections to the 
proposal. 

Alternative Options 

1 Under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make diversion 
orders. It does not have a duty to do so. The Council could decide not to make an order. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

19



Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The public path order should be made because it is felt that it meets the criteria set out in 
Section 119 of the Highways Act and Herefordshire Council’s Public Path Order Policy in that 
it is in the interest of the landowner and is not substantially less convenient to the public. 

Introduction and Background 

3 This report is being considered by the Regulatory Committee because it has the delegated 
authority to make the decision whether or not to make an order. 

Key Considerations 

4 Mr and Mrs Clare, the landowners, made the application on 10/04/2007. The reasons for the 
proposed diversion are that the current legal line runs through the farmyard and very close to 
buildings which have recently been given planning permission for residential development. 
The proposed route takes the path away from the buildings and is more convenient to both 
users and landowner.  .  

5 The proposed route runs across open fields and through gates rather whereas the existing 
path runs along a very muddy enclosed track and is therefore more accessible 

6 The applicant has carried out all pre-order consultations with user groups, the parish council 
and the local member and the proposal has general agreement. The Local Member, Councillor 
J B Williams, has stated he has no objections to diverting the footpath. 

7 The applicant has agreed to pay for advertising and to reimburse, in full, the Council’s 
standard charge for making the diversion order.  

8 The proposed diversion meets the specified criteria as set out in section 119 of the Highways 
Act 1980, and in particular that:  

• The proposal benefits the owner of the land crossed by the existing path.  

• The proposal is not substantially less convenient to the public. 

Community Impact 

9 The Parish Council and local user groups have been consulted as part of the process and 
there have been no objections to the proposals. The route is generally more convenient for 
local residents. 

Financial Implications 

10     The applicants have agreed to pay the Council’s standard fee for the making of a diversion 
order (£800) and to pay associated advertising costs. The applicant has also agreed to meet 
the costs of bringing the new path into a suitable condition. 

Legal Implications 

11 Under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make diversion 
orders. It does not have a duty to do so.  

20



Risk Management 

12     If an order is made to divert LV11 as recommended within this report, there is a risk that the 
order will receive objections and would therefore require referral to the Secretary of State which 
will increase the demands on officer time and resources. However extensive informal 
consultations have taken place to minimise the risk of such objections. 

Consultees 

13  

• Prescribed organisations as per Defra Rights Of Way Circular 1/09 

• Local Member-Councillor J B Williams 

• Longtown Group Parish Council 

• Statutory Undertakers 

Appendices 

14 Order Plan, drawing number: D382/244-11 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

21



22



23



24



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Will Steel, Rights of Way Manager on (01432) 845980 
  

$v4mjnitz.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7 DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119. PROPOSED 
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER FOOTPATH 
CH20 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF CLEHONGER AND 
FOOTPATH EB25 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF 
EATON BISHOP  

PORTFOLIO AREA:  Highways and Transportation 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Stoney Street 

Purpose 

To consider an application under the Highways Act 1980, section 119, to make a public path 
diversion order to divert part of footpath CH20 in the parish of Clehonger and part of footpath 
EB25 in the parish of Eaton Bishop. 

and 

To agree to the formal abandonment of the previously made order, which was made in 1995 
but received objections. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

i) That a public path diversion order is made under Section 119 of the Highways 
 Act 1980, as illustrated on drawing number: D19/88-201/130-25(i).   

and  

ii) That the, ‘County of Hereford and Worcester, Footpath no CH20 Clehonger and 
 Footpath No EB25 (part) Eaton Bishop Public Path Diversion Order 1995’ made 
 under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 in 1995 is abandoned. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

25



Key Points Summary 

• An application to divert the above paths was made in 1990 

• An order was made to divert the path in February 1995. 

• Objections were received from the Open Spaces Society and the Ramblers’ Association. 

• The order could not be confirmed due to the objections and was not forwarded to the 
Secretary of State for confirmation, as the OSS and RA objections were held to be valid 
points 

• It is decided to pursue the making of a new order to address the objections 

• A new route is proposed in conjunction with the current landowner and Natural England 
as the area is a Site of Special scientific interest. 

• It is proposed that the costs of the diversion and associated works will be split between 
the Landowner, Natural England and Herefordshire Council 

• The proposals were sent to pre-order consultation on 14th September 2010. 

• The proposals received agreement from user groups. 

Alternative Options 

1 Under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make diversion 
orders. It does not have a duty to do so. The Council could reject the application on the 
grounds that it does not contribute sufficiently to the wider ambitions and priorities of the 
Council and could refer the previously made order to the Secretary of State for a decision.  
However, it is felt that the objections made by the Open Spaces Society and Ramblers 
Association are valid and would render the Order impossible to confirm. This would not, 
therefore, resolve the fact that the current line of the path is obstructed by a large pond and 
is impassable for much of the year. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The previously made order to divert this path should not be confirmed because it has 
received a number of objections.  It is felt that they provide a fatal flaw to the order and it is 
therefore incapable of being confirmed.  The new public path order should be made 
because it is felt that it meets the criteria set out in s. 119 of the Highways Act (in that it is in 
the landowners interest and is not substantially less convenient to the public) and there 
have been no objections to this proposal at pre-order consultation stage.  

Introduction and Background 

3 Before an order is made to divert a footpath under the Highways Act 1980, it is necessary 
to gain a decision from the Regulatory Committee as they hold the delegated authority to 
make this decision. 

26



Key Considerations 

4 Mr Hayter, who was the landowner at the time, made the application on 12th of February 
1990. The reasons given for making the application were that EB25 is obstructed by a pond 
and CH20 is impassable for much of the year due to it being wet and boggy. 

5 An order to divert the path was made and advertised in 1995. 

6 The order received objections from the Open Spaces Society (OSS) and the Ramblers’ 
Association (RA).  The objections were that:  

• they had not been consulted prior to the making of the order. 

• the order did not describe the route in sufficient detail to clearly identify the     
proposed route. 

• the works intended were not listed in detail . 

• the route would be better designed to exit onto the road in a different position. 

• the order notice was not placed in the correct location. 

7 The land was sold to Mr & Mrs Hayes in 2002, who did not know of the problems with the 
right of way until they were made aware after the purchase of the property. Mr and Mrs 
Hayes are keen to resolve the problems. 

8 It is felt that the difficulties with the order could not be overcome by referring the matter to 
the Secretary of State for modification and then confirmation as they render the order 
incapable of being confirmed.   

9 A site visit between the current landowner, representatives of Herefordshire Council and 
Natural England enabled a new proposal to be mapped, which avoided the wetter areas of 
the site, thus avoiding the more sensitive regions of the Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI).  

10 The proposals were sent to pre-order consultation in September 2010 and received general 
support 

11 The local member, Cllr. D C Taylor holds no objections to the proposals. 

12 The proposed diversion meets the specified criteria as set out in section 119 of the Highways 
Act 1980 in that:  

• The proposal benefits the owner of the land crossed by the existing path. 

• The proposal is not substantially less convenient to the public. 
  

Community Impact 

13 The Eaton Bishop and Clehonger Parish Councils were consulted as part of the process 
and do not hold any objections to the proposals. 

27



Financial Implications 

14 The landowner, Mrs Hayes has agreed to pay for all advertising costs (£500-£800) for the 
proposed diversion. Due to the age of the application and the status of the land (SSSI), it is 
proposed that Herefordshire Council will waive the administration fee (£800) and Natural 
England will pay for the infrastructure needed to open up the proposed route (1400)  

Legal Implications 

15 Under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make diversion 
orders. It does not have a duty to do so.  However, if an order to divert the path is not 
made, the existing legal line of the path will remain obstructed by the lake and the boggy 
area adjacent to the stream. 

Risk Management 

16 If an order is made as proposed, it may receive objections which would necessitate it being 
referred to the Secretary of State for a decision, this would place an increased demand on 
officer time.  However, this risk has been reduced by carrying out the pre-order consultation 
to which no objections were received. 

Consultees 

17   

• Prescribed organisations as per Defra Rights Of Way Circular 1/09.  

• Local Member – Cllr. D C Taylor 

• Clehonger and Eaton Bishop Parish Councils. 

• Statutory Undertakers. 

Appendices 

18 Order Plan, drawing number: D19/88-20/130-25(i) 

19 Draft order and Schedule. 

 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

28



29



30



 

 

REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
LICENSING APPEAL PROCEDURE 

 
1. Introduction by Legal Advisor to the Committee. 
 
2. Licensing Officer outlines the case. 
 
3. Applicant (or his solicitor) sets out his case. 
 
4. Questions asked by the Committee or Licensing Officer or Applicant. 
 
5. Applicant (or his solicitor) asked if he would like to make further comment or 

representation, or if he requires time to comment or investigate (if so, 
Chairman defers application). 

 
6. In dealing with each application, the applicant (and any representative) should 

also withdraw should be asked to withdraw when they have finished their 
presentation.  All officers, other than the Legal Adviser to the Committee, 
should also withdraw.  It would be preferable for the applicant and officers to 
await the decision at different locations. 

 
7. If either the applicant or the officer are needed to furnish additional 

information, they should all be invited back before the Committee.  When the 
additional information has been furnished, they should all be asked to leave 
again. 

 
8. The Committee can then reach a decision in the usual way, but in the 

absence of parties. 
 
9. The applicant and officers will then be invited to return.  The Chairman will 

announce the decision.  The Chairman should also say that the decision will 
be communicated in writing in due course, and that the applicant will be 
informed of any right of appeal (if the decision is one of refusal). 

 
10. When the first applicant is finished, that applicant should leave.  Deal with the 

second and subsequent applications in the same way.   
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

31



32



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Claire Berrow – Licensing Officer on (01432) 383542 
  

$xevlrrl5.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7 DECEMBER 2010 

TITLE OF REPORT: APPLICATION TO RE-INSTATE AN EXPIRED 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE 
OUTSIDE STANDARD CONDITION 9.5 BY MR 
SHAHID ALI 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (EHTS) 

PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To decide whether to licence a vehicle outside the standards vehicle licence conditions. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT Committee: 

 (a) grant the licence outside the standard conditions on this occasion; and 

(b) advise Mr Ali that any future late application may be refused.   

Key Points Summary 

• Licence expired 12th November 2010. 

• Renewal application not received until 24th November 2010. 

Alternative Options 

The licence cannot be renewed and therefore is refused 
Advantages: It ensures that the existing licence conditions are fully met.  
Disadvantages: It could be subject to legal challenge.  

AGENDA ITEM 11

33



Reason for rejection: Although this has been considered, it has not been recommended as it 
is considered to be unreasonable when it has occurred as a result of an error on the part of the 
applicant. 
 
To defer the decision in order to get more information 
The Committee could make a decision to grant the licence subject to that information meeting 
the criteria set by committee being produced to the Licensing Officer. Where this was not 
produced, the licence would remain not granted until that information was produced. 
Advantages: Gives the opportunity to the applicant to produce further information in support 
of the application and allows him a fair hearing. It would also reduce then need for an 
additional Committee Hearing thus saving costs. 
Disadvantages: This would delay the decision process and may mean that the livelihood of 
the applicant could be affected.  
Reason for rejection: It is felt that any information required to reach a decision has been 
provided within the application. 
 
To reach some other decision 
Advantages: This leaves other solutions open to the Committee to resolve the application. 
Disadvantages: There are no clear directions from the Assistant Director in respect of the 
application. 
Reason for rejection: It is difficult to envisage what other decision could be reached. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

 In view of the fact that this was an oversight on the part of the applicant due to family 
bereavement and long term illness of his son, it is felt to be appropriate that the application on 
this occasion should be granted. 

Introduction and Background 

1. Under the terms of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 local authorities may make reasonable conditions for the 
regulation of both hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, drivers and operators. 

2. The licence conditions were approved at Regulatory Committee on the March 2010. 

   Standard condition number 11.5 states: - 
‘All applications received after the date of expiry will be treated as ‘grants’ and not ‘renewals’ 
and the appropriate conditions and fees will apply’. 

Under the terms of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, local authorities may make reasonable conditions for the 
regulation of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, drivers and operators.   

3. This Council previously licensed a VW Passat registration number NG53 PFX on Plate 
No.H328, which was first registered on 18th November 2003. 

 
4. Four renewal letters/reminders were sent to Mr Ali. However, no application was received from 

Mr Ali and accordingly the plate expired on 12th November 2010. (Appendix 2). 
 
5. On 24th November 2010 an application was taken to Bath Street Offices by Mr Ali to licence 

the same vehicle.  A licensing team member advised Mr Ali that the matter would have to be 
considered by the Regulatory Committee as the application was late. 

 

34



6. The application therefore is to renew the new plate to the previously licensed vehicle, although 
it has technically expired beyond the renewal date. To allow a renewal would mean that the 
vehicle could remain as a saloon without disabled access. To insist on a new application for a 
grant of licence would mean that it would have to have be disabled access.  
 

Key Considerations 

7. Whether or not, in the given circumstances, the application should be granted outside the 
standard conditions.  

Community Impact 

8. It is felt that any decision made will have very little or no impact on the community.  

Financial Implications 

9. Not applicable 

Legal Implications 

10. Under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 there is a right of appeal to 
a Magistrates Court within 21 days of notification of the decision being served on the 
applicant.  

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Copy of standard licence conditions  

Appendix 2 – Copy of application form 

Background Papers 

Background papers are available for inspection in the Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 30 minutes before the start of the hearing. 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



AGENDA ITEM 13

61

Document is Restricted



64



65

Document is Restricted



66



AGENDA ITEM 14

67

Document is Restricted



70



71

Document is Restricted



72



73

Document is Restricted



76



77

Document is Restricted



78



79

Document is Restricted



80



AGENDA ITEM 15

81

Document is Restricted



84



85

Document is Restricted



88


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	5 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER, FOOTPATH FWD10 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF FOWNHOPE
	[5] FWD 10 plan

	6 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION & EXTINGUISHMENT, FOOTPATHS BM12 AND BM13 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF BODENHAM
	[6] BM12_13Rev

	7 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER, FOOTPATH LV11 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF LLANVEYNOE
	[7] LV11_OrderPlan

	8 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 119.  PROPOSED PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER, FOOTPATH CH20, CLEHONGER (PART) AND FOOTPATH EB25 (PART) IN THE PARISH OF EATON BISHOP
	[8] CH20 plan

	10 PROCEDURAL ARRANGEMENTS
	11 APPLICATION TO RE-INSTATE AN EXPIRED HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE OUTSIDE STANDARD CONDITION 9.5 BY MR SHAHID ALI
	[11] Vehicle Conditions 06 04 2010
	[11] Ali vehicle SCAN3443_000 (2)

	13 DUAL (HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE) DRIVER'S LICENCE - TO DETERMINE WHETHER A LICENCE HOLDER CONTINUES TO BE A FIT AND PROPER PERSON TO HOLD A DUAL DRIVER'S LICENCE - LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976
	[13] Joseph SCAN3408_000

	14 DUAL (HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE) DRIVER'S LICENCE - TO DETERMINE WHETHER A LICENCE HOLDER CONTINUES TO BE A FIT AND PROPER PERSON TO HOLD A DUAL DRIVER'S LICENCE. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976
	[14b]Asif Ali - driving licence
	[14a]application form
	[14c]Asif Ali - notice of disqualification
	[14d]Asif Ali - notice of fine and collection order

	15 DUAL (HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE) DRIVER'S LICENCE - TO DETERMINE WHETHER A LICENCE HOLDER CONTINUES TO BE A FIT AND PROPER PERSON TO HOLD A DUAL DRIVER'S LICENCE. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976
	[15] Joynes SCAN3444_000


